Second Draft for NNG10315881R Questions and Responses
1. Is a major objective of the sample task to design, develop, and test a complete mission operations element (MOE) (or ground system) that will be used in a Government provided facility, or is it to provide support for various elements of the ground system development with the government serving as the overall MOE (or ground) system integrator?
Government Response: Typically, the task would support the Government ground system integrator.  The RTO is meant to elicit the proposers’ knowledge of design, development, test and operations of mission operations systems. 
2. The RTO SOW discusses the delivery of three systems that are not listed in the deliverables list. They are as follows: 

· 2.3.2.1 Telemetry, Command, and Control – The Contractor shall define the telemetry and command (T&C) software and hardware requirements, and deliver a system that meets those requirements 

· 2.3.2.2 Mission Planning - The Contractor shall deliver a system that meets the [mission planning] requirements and provides a conflict free schedule of events

· 2.3.2.4 Trending - The Contractor shall define requirements to analyze subsystem, system, spacecraft, and fleet performance, and deliver a system to satisfy those requirements.

Will the government include these and any other intended hardware and software deliverables on the deliverables list along with the need dates, quantities required and delivery locations?
Government Response: The RTO will be updated to clarify that the Contractor is responsible for the overall design (hardware and software elements (and quantities required) included) and the delivery schedule of the overall SEE Ground System.  The Contractor shall propose a schedule of delivery consistent with the milestones established in the RTO.  All deliveries shall be made to the GSFC managed MOC (or MOCs) consistent with the proposed ground system design and schedule.
3. Page 1 lists the mission characteristics.  What is the level of redundancy in the various flight systems?  What are the redundancy and reliability requirements for the ground system and is there a back up MOC?
Government Response: The flight systems are single string.  The ground system design and implementation must meet the need to command the spacecraft, retrieve 99% of the Solid State Recorder data, and provide for health and safety monitoring. 
4. There appear to be inconsistencies in the program schedule milestones, details in the description, and the deliverables list dates.  Can the Government review the dates throughout the RTO and provide corrections where required?  For example: 

a. GS Requirements Review Date:  Page 1 lists it as February 2012 and Page 3 lists it as June 2011 (prior to the start of the task). 
b. The Operations Readiness Review Materials are due November 2014, but the Operations Readiness Review is not scheduled until November 2015.  

c. Post Launch Assessment Review Material is due June 2015, but the launches don’t occur until February 2016 and April 2016.  

d. Some of the dates listed in the deliverables list appear to be off by a year vs. the schedule milestone dates on pages 1 and 2. 

Government Response: The Government will address the inconsistencies and update the RTO.
5. Page 6, Section 2.3.2.11 lists that GSE development is N/A for this task.  Section 3.2 identifies that the GSMO Contractor will be required to support launch site support including processing of GSE into and out of the site.  Can the Government please clarify this apparent inconsistency?
Government Response: This task will not be used to build GSE for use during I&T.  The Contractor may need to use furnished GSE during I&T.  Section 3.2 addresses launch site operations, and the Contractor will coordinate the delivery and integration of GSE into and out of the launch site.

6. RTO, re: Class; what class mission are these satellites? (Class A – D, reference NASA NPR 8705.4)

Government Response: The mission overall is a Class B.   The individual satellites are Class C.
7. MOR Schedule; Please confirm the scheduling of the Mission Operations Review. It is described as 6 months after the CDR and 2.5 years before launch, which is not a typical schedule for GSFC missions.
Government Response: The schedule will be addressed in the updated RTO for Final RFP, and will reflect a more typical schedule for GSFC missions.
8. RTO 2.3.2, GSRR Schedule; Please clarify GSRR schedule. The page 1 schedule dictates Feb 2012 and 2.3.2 uses June 2011.
Government Response: The GSRR schedule will be addressed in the updated RTO for Final RFP and will reflect Feb 2012 consistently throughout.  
9. RTO 2.3.2.1, I&T Schedule; When will spacecraft I&T begin? We must ensure that the T&C system is ready to support spacecraft I&T in Denver.

Government Response: Spacecraft I&T will begin May 2013
10. RTO 2.3.2.1, I&T Support; Please expand on the expected use of the T&C system to “support spacecraft integration and test activities”.

Government Response: The Government expects to use the same T&C system during spacecraft integration and test and for mission operations.  Spacecraft and Instruments test sequences shall be developed and executed during the I&T phase using the Project database using the T&C system baselined for operations.
11. Mission Operations Duration; Would you consider extending the duration of the Phase E activities beyond the current 1month to at least one year? This may require artificially compressing the mission schedule but will result in a task that represents the entire RTO scope and allows adequate time to demonstrate successful operations performance.

Government Response: The schedule will be updated to reflect a full year of Phase E operations.
12. The government describes the different antennae used for the L1, L2 spacecraft vs. those used for the four LEO spacecraft. 

Questions:  

a. Are there any other significant differences between the spacecraft? 
Government Response: The propulsion system is sized to deliver the L1 and L2 spacecraft to the mission orbit and provide 10 years of orbit maintenance.  The propulsion system for the LEO spacecraft is designed to reach the mission orbit, and to enable a de-orbit (not a controlled reentry) to meet Agency guidelines.  No other significant differences.

b. Similarly, are there any differences in the types of plasma, particles, and electric field instruments for the L1, L2 spacecraft vs. the LEO spacecraft? 

Government Response: No there are no differences.
c. What is the tolerance on the orbit parameters for the LEO spacecraft, including the tolerance on their spacing? 
Government Response: The spacecraft shall be placed into approximate 350 km by 4175 km orbits inclined 83 degrees at 90 degrees intervals +/- 5 degrees

d. Alternatively, what is the level of orbit maintenance required?  
Government Response: Following initialization, no maintenance is required.

13. In the Governments response to question 5 (of the first Draft question responses) asking for access to Operational Readiness documentation is proprietary How does the Government intend to provide the critical information contained in the MOMS contract deliverables that is necessary to successfully transition and maintain operational readiness of these missions, if information necessary to support this has been determined proprietary?  Has the Government identified other MOMS contract and task deliverables that have been marked proprietary but are necessary for the successful transition of operational missions? Will the Government have all the required documentation for LRO and SDO available to contractor for review?

Government Response: The government will provide all necessary information that has not already been provided to the successful Offeror at contract award, for understanding and ease in the transition. 

 

14. The response to Question 37 and RFP Section L.18 (b) (2) include photographs as requiring no smaller than 10 point font.  Because the contractor may not be able to control the font size in items such as photographs or screen captures, we recommend that these items be considered for exemption from the 10-point font requirement. 

Government Response: NASA defines a page as one side of a sheet, 8-1/2" x 11", with at least one inch margins on all sides, using not smaller than 12 point type Times New Roman font.  Text in Diagrams, schedules, charts, tables, artwork, and photographs shall be no smaller than 10 point.  Diagrams, tables, artwork, and photographs shall not be used to circumvent the text size limitations of the proposal. See L.18 (b) (2). We have not altered our response or the direction provided in the RFP. 

